
  
 
 

Wednesday, February 11, 2015 
Hilton Charlotte University Place 

8629 JM Keynes Drive 
Charlotte, NC 28262 

Board of Delegates 
 Agenda 

 
 

Chairman Michael Johnson will convene a meeting of the Centralina COG Board of Delegates on Wednesday, February 
11, 2015 with a working dinner.  He also invites the Delegates to attend a CCOG Board Orientation and Refresher at 
5:15 p.m., followed by a networking session and reception with CCOG staff at 6:15 p.m. 

 

Time Item Presenter 
5:15 p.m. 
Walden Room 
 

CCOG Board Orientation and Refresher Session: 
CCOG Directors and staff will give a brief presentation entitled “My Role as a 
CCOG Delegate.” 

Jim Prosser and 
CCOG Directors 

6:15 p.m. 
Outside of Walden Room 

Networking and Reception: 
During the Board of Delegates reception period, CCOG staff will be available to 
answer questions about the organization’s ongoing work in the region. 

CCOG Staff 

6:30 p.m. 
Glenwaters Room 

Dinner: 
Please RSVP to Kelly Weston at kweston@centralina.org or (704) 348-2728 by 
12 p.m. on Wednesday, February 4, 2015 so that catering can be arranged. 

Kelly Weston 

Call to Order, Welcome & Declaration of Quorum Michael Johnson 
Amendments to the Agenda (if any) Michael Johnson 

Consent Items: 
Consent agenda items may be considered in one motion and without discussion except for those items removed by a Board member. 
Item 1 
Pages 6 - 9 

Approval of the October 8, 2014 Board of Delegates Meeting Minutes 
The minutes of the October 8, 2014 meeting have been sent to all members of the 
Board of Delegates and should be approved if correct. 
 

Action / Recommendation: 
I move to approve the October 8, 2014 Board of Delegates meeting minutes. 

Michael Johnson 

Item 2 
Pages 10 - 11 

Report of Financial Activity for the Period Ending December 31, 2014 
The Statement of Activities for the period ending December 31, 2014 reflects the 
expenditures incurred and revenue earned through 50% of the fiscal year.  
Revenues and expenditures are in line with the budget to date. The report includes 
approximately $178,000 in unfunded expenditures for CONNECT-related close-
out activities. 
 
Management is meeting with the budget managers and the Board’s audit 
committee to evaluate the financial status and provide recommendations for 
adjustments.  
 
Action / Recommendation: 
For information and discussion purposes. 

Tonya Frye 

Item 3 
Pages 12 - 16 

Amendments to the CCOG Bylaws as Recommended by Legal Counsel and 
Staff, and as Reviewed by the Executive Board 
Proposed amendments to CCOG Bylaws were included in the consent agenda for 
the October 8, 2014 Delegates meeting and received unanimous approval; 
however, a quorum was not present, so the amendments were not officially 
adopted and are thus presented for consideration again.  The purpose of these 
amendments is to (a) adjust the timing of presentation of the Nominating 
Committee’s slate of nominees for Officer elections, (b) clarify terminology used 
regarding municipalities’ representation on the Executive Board, and (c) make 
minor, non-substantive changes (e.g. typos).  The specific changes proposed are 
found in the attached document titled “Centralina Council of Governments 
Proposed Bylaws Amendments for Board of Delegates Consideration October 8, 
2014.” 
 
[Note that a two-thirds majority vote and proper advance notice are both required 
in order to amend the Bylaws at a meeting at which a quorum is present (see 
Article XI Amendments of Bylaws).] 

Vicki Bott 

1

mailto:kweston@centralina.org


  
 
 

Wednesday, February 11, 2015 
Hilton Charlotte University Place 

8629 JM Keynes Drive 
Charlotte, NC 28262 

Board of Delegates 
 Agenda 

 
Time Item Presenter 

 
Action / Recommendation: 
Legal Counsel and Staff recommend approval of the following motion: 
 
I move that, notice having been properly given in accordance with Article XI of 
the Centralina Council of Governments Bylaws, the proposed amendments to the 
Bylaws be approved as shown in the document titled “Centralina Council of 
Governments Proposed Bylaws Amendments for Board of Delegates 
Consideration October 8, 2014. 
 
Alternatively, the Board may approve the proposed amendments with 
modifications or decline to approve any amendments.  [Any motion to amend will 
require a quorum and a two-thirds majority vote to pass.] 

Regular Business Items: 
Item 4 
Page 17 

CCOG Nominating Committee Report 
The Nominating Committee presents a slate of candidates for election of Officers 
to the CCOG Board of Delegates for 2015.  In addition, nominations will be 
accepted from the floor. 
 
Chair: Michael Johnson, Mayor Pro Tem, City of Statesville 
Vice Chair: Sarah McAulay, Commissioner, Town of Huntersville 
Secretary: Patsy Kinsey, Council Member, City of Charlotte 
Treasurer: Bill Feather, Mayor, Town of Granite Quarry 
 

Article IX:  OFFICERS - Designation and Term:  The Council officers 
shall consist of a Chair, a Vice-Chair, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, who 
shall be elected and installed at the first regular meeting of the Council 
each year. Officers shall be elected for a term of one year, or until their 
successors are elected.  In addition, the immediate past Chair of the 
Council shall continue to serve as an officer of the Council as long as he 
or she remains a delegate.   

Jarvis Woodburn, 
Chairman, 
Nominating 
Committee 

Item 5 
Page 18 

Election of CCOG Officers 
The Board of Delegates will elect its officers for 2015, who shall take office at the 
end of this meeting. 
 
Action / Recommendation: 
I move to accept the report of the Nominating Committee and elect the slate of 
candidates by acclimation.  

Kelly Weston 

Item 6 
Page 19 

Installation of New CCOG Officers 
The Clerk to the Board will install the newly elected CCOG Officers for 2015. 

Kelly Weston 

Item 7 
Page 20 

Election by County Caucuses of Municipal Executive Board Members 
In accordance with CCOG’s Bylaws, the county caucuses of municipal Delegates 
shall elect one of their members to serve from their respective County Areas. 
 

Article VII:  EXECUTIVE BOARD - Membership:  The Executive 
Board shall be composed of:  (1) The officers of the Council, (2) the 
delegate from each County member government, (3) the delegate from the 
City of Charlotte, and (4) one municipal delegate from each County area 
representing all municipalities within such county, including one to 
represent the municipalities in Mecklenburg County other than the City of 
Charlotte. Provided, however, if a county, a county area, or the City of 
Charlotte has a delegate who is an officer of the Council, that unit shall 
not be entitled to an additional representative on the Executive Board.  

Michael Johnson 

2



  
 
 

Wednesday, February 11, 2015 
Hilton Charlotte University Place 

8629 JM Keynes Drive 
Charlotte, NC 28262 

Board of Delegates 
 Agenda 

 
Time Item Presenter 

The municipal delegates from all municipal member government units 
within each county area (excluding the City of Charlotte delegate as to 
Mecklenburg County) shall elect from their number by caucus at the first 
Council meeting of the calendar year, the municipal delegate from the 
county area to serve on the Executive Board.  Only delegates (not 
alternates) may serve on the Executive Board. 

 
*The county representative, or in their absence, a CCOG staff member, will 
convene municipal members in absence, but shall not participate in the voting. 

Item 8 
Page 21 

CCOG 2013-2014 Annual Report 
Centralina Council of Governments (CCOG) is a regional council of cities, towns, 
and counties working together to help local governments in this region to grow 
jobs and the economy, improve quality of life, and control the cost of government.  
Centralina provides services that enable local governments to address the local 
and regional challenges that affect them, get up-to-date information, save money, 
access grant funds and better position themselves for long-term economic health.  
We are one of 16 state-designated councils of government with this responsibility 
in North Carolina.  The Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Annual Report provides a 
financial report, preceded by program highlights of the ways CCOG is responding 
to the needs of our member governments, their citizens, and the region. 
 
Action / Recommendation: 
For information and discussion purposes. 

Michael Johnson 

Item 9 
Pages 22 - 23 

Proposed CCOG Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
The Board Treasurer and Finance Director will present an annual budget 
proposal for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for the Board’s approval in May 2015 when 
the Council will have more definitive grant information.  This proposal will 
include three budget options – 1) low risk with confirmed revenue support; 2) no 
merit adjustments; and 3) adjustments for medical insurance.  It will also reflect 
any other direction provided by the Board, for example, continued administration 
of the Volunteer Transportation Services program.   
 
To comply with the charter, however, Management is submitting a Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 placeholder budget for approval.  The Executive Board voted to 
recommend this proposed budget to the Board of Delegates in January 2015.  
Management is requesting the Board of Delegates’ approval of this proposed 
budget. 
 
Action / Recommendation: 
I move to approve the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Centralina COG annual operating 
budget ordinance in the amount of $5,062,901. 
 
Legal Notice:  Charlotte Observer – Run Date: Sunday, February 8, 2015 
 
Advertised public hearing on the proposed budget for FY 2015-2016: 
“A proposed FY 2015-2016 budget ordinance of the Centralina Council of 
Governments has been submitted to the Executive Board and is available for 
public inspection at the Centralina COG’s office located at 525 North Tryon 
Street, 12th Floor, Charlotte, NC.  The Board of Delegates will hold a public 
hearing on this budget on Wednesday, February 11, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. at the 
Hilton Charlotte University Place, 8629 JM Keynes Drive, Charlotte, NC, 28262. 

Tonya Frye 

3



  
 
 

Wednesday, February 11, 2015 
Hilton Charlotte University Place 

8629 JM Keynes Drive 
Charlotte, NC 28262 

Board of Delegates 
 Agenda 

 
 

Item 10 
Pages 24 - 25 

Proposed CCOG Grant Projects Budget Ordinance for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 
The Board Treasurer and Finance Director will present a grant projects budget 
proposal for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for the Board’s approval in May 2015 when 
the Council will have more definitive grant information.   
 
To comply with the charter, however, Management is submitting a Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 placeholder budget for approval.  The Executive Board voted to 
recommend this proposed budget to the Board of Delegates in January 2015.  
Management is requesting the Board of Delegates’ approval of this proposed 
budget. 
 
Action / Recommendation: 
I move to approve the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Centralina COG grant projects 
budget ordinance in the amount of $15,515,628. 

Tonya Frye 

Item 11 
Page 26  

Member Assessment for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
The Board Treasurer and Finance Director will present an annual budget 
proposal for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for the Board’s approval in May 2015 when 
the Council will have more definitive grant information.  The budget will reflect 
membership assessments at a rate of $0.24 per capita for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.  
This has been the rate for member assessments since Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  The 
assessments are based on the 2010 North Carolina Census results and will be a 
minimum of $750 for all members. 
 
Action / Recommendation: 
I move to set the assessment rate for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 at $0.24 per capita 
with a minimum assessment amount of $750 per member. 

Tonya Frye 

Item 12 
Page 27 

Approval of Occupancy Contract Included in the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
Proposed Operating Budget 
The proposed operating budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 includes an 
appropriation of approximately $352,000 for occupancy costs associated with the 
12th floor office space located at 525 North Tryon Street.  Management is 
requesting the Board of Delegates approve this contractual obligation. 
 
Action / Recommendation 
I move to approve the contractual obligation for the office space in the amount not 
to exceed $352,000 included in the proposed operating budget for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016. 

Jim Prosser 

Item 13 
Pages 28 - 40 

Resolution to Support the Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply 
Master Plan 
The Catawba-Wateree Water Management Group has completed the first phase of 
a Basin-wide Water Supply Master Plan (WSMP). The Master Plan provides a 
framework for effective management and stewardship through regional 
partnership and cooperation. The recommendations in the Master Plan are 
designed to support the growing needs of the region into the next century. 

o The complete plan, an executive summary, and other related 
documents are available at: 
http://catawbawatereewmg.org/projects.html  

o A recording of a webinar and slides presented that go deeper into 
this topic are posted at: http://www.centralina.org/regional-
planning/energy-enviroment/water-groups/  or 
www.catawbawatereewmg.org  

Throughout the Fall of 2014 and January 2015 CW WMG Chair Barry Gullet has 

Jason Wager 
 

4

http://catawbawatereewmg.org/projects.html
http://www.centralina.org/regional-planning/energy-enviroment/water-groups/
http://www.centralina.org/regional-planning/energy-enviroment/water-groups/
http://www.catawbawatereewmg.org/


  
 
 

Wednesday, February 11, 2015 
Hilton Charlotte University Place 

8629 JM Keynes Drive 
Charlotte, NC 28262 

Board of Delegates 
 Agenda 

 
presented this document and its major outputs to our Executive Board and Board 
of Delegates.  At these meetings he and Centralina staff have identified comments, 
questions, concerns, or requests for additional information that will be considered 
in a planned WSMP addendum process planned for the Spring of 2015.  This input 
is included in the attached. 
 
Of the 18 public water utilities in North and South Carolina which operate water 
intakes on either a reservoir or along the main stem of the Catawba river, 13 
resolutions have been approved.  Four groups have not formally considered the 
resolution yet. Lincoln County is considering the resolution and has not made a 
final decision at this time. 
 
Action / Recommendation 
Vote on Adoption of a Resolution of Support for this Plan. 

Item 14 
Pages 41 - 44 

CONNECT Our Future Update 
Over the past three years, the CONNECT Our Future process was guided by a 94 
member public-private Consortium and the leadership of two regional councils 
(Centralina COG and Catawba Regional COG) to help us better prepare for the 
projected population growth within our region. 
 
The publicly driven process engaged over 8,000 residents throughout the 14 
county region of North and South Carolina to help create a Regional Growth 
Framework to guide future growth of our region. The preferred growth concept 
affirmed by the residents and the CONNECT Consortium supports: 

• Major (re)investment in walkable downtowns, mixed-use activity centers, 
walkable neighborhoods, and major transit corridors 

• More housing choices, travel choices, open space/farmland preservation, 
and job centers 

• More efficient and cost-effective provision of local government 
services—more “bang for the buck” 

 
The CONNECT Our Future Regional Growth Framework includes over 80 
different tools and strategies to help us realize the vision created by the residents 
of the 14-county region. These tools will be available as a magazine-style report 
and interactive website for use by our communities. 
 
Staff will present key findings and preview available tools/resources at the 
meeting. 
 
Action / Recommendation 
Receive as information. 

Sushil Nepal 

Item  15 
Page 45 

Resolution of Appreciation – Rebecca Yarbrough Michael Johnson 

5 minutes Comments from the Board of Delegates Board Members 
5 minutes Comments from the Chair Michael Johnson 
5 minutes Comments from the Executive Director  Jim Prosser 
8:45 p.m. Adjournment Michael Johnson 

 
 

Centralina Council of Governments complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability. Centralina 
Council of Governments will make reasonable accommodations in all programs/services to enable participation by an individual with a disability who meets essential 
eligibility requirements. Centralina Council of Governments’ programs will be available in the most integrated setting for each individual. If any accommodations are 
necessary for participation, please contact the Clerk to the Board, 525 North Tryon Street, 12th Floor, Charlotte, NC 28202, phone (704) 348-2728. Please allow 72 
hours advance notice for preparation.  Visit our website:  www.centralina.org. 

5

http://www.centralina.org/


 

 

 

 

Item 1 



   
     

  
   
 

 
 
 

Board of Delegates Minutes 
October 8, 2014 

 

Jurisdiction Represented By Jurisdictions Not Represented 
Albemarle Martha Sue Hall Ansonville 
Anson County Jarvis Woodburn Charlotte 
Badin Deloris Chambers Cherryville 
Belmont Ron Foulk Cleveland 
Bessemer City Kay McCathen/Jean Floyd Dallas 
China Grove Charles Seaford Davidson 
Cornelius Thurman Ross East Spencer 
Cramerton Will Cauthen Faith 
Gaston County Joe Carpenter Gastonia 
Granite Quarry Mike Brinkley Harmony 
Huntersville Sarah McAulay Hemby Bridge 
Iredell County Ken Robertson High Shoals 
Landis James Furr Indian Trail 
Mint Hill Richard Newton Kings Mountain 
Spencer Jody Everhart Lincoln County 
Stanly County Lindsey Dunevant Lincolnton 
Statesville Michael Johnson Locust 
  Lowell 
  Marshville 
  Marvin 
  Matthews 
  McAdenville 
  Mecklenburg County 
  Midland 
  Mineral Springs 
  Misenheimer 
  Monroe 
  Mooresville 
  Morven 
  Mount Holly 
  Mount Pleasant 
  New London  
  Norwood 
  Oakboro 
  Pineville 
  Ranlo 
  Richfield 
  Salisbury 
  Spencer Mountain 
  Stallings 

6



   
     

  
   
 

  Stanley 
  Troutman 
  Union County 
  Unionville 
  Wadesboro 
  Waxhaw 
  Weddington 
  Wesley Chapel 
  Wingate 

 
 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order  
 
Chairman Michael Johnson called the meeting to order.  Executive Director Jim Prosser verified and 
confirmed a quorum was present.   
 

2. Amendments to the Agenda 
 
There were no amendments to the agenda.   
 

3. Consent Agenda 
 
There being no requests to remove items from the Consent Agenda, Vice Chair Sarah McAulay made 
a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jarvis 
Woodburn and carried unanimously. 

 
1. Minutes from August 13, 2014.  
2. Amendments to the CCOG Bylaws as recommended by Legal Counsel, staff, and the 

Executive Board. 
  

4. Career Headlight Overview 
 
David Hollars gave a presentation on Centralina COG’s Career Headlight tool.  He noted that the 
system was designed to aid students and career-seekers in locating jobs and to build economic and 
workforce development within the region.  As directed by the Delegates at the last Board meeting, 
CCOG staff developed a Career Headlight brochure describing the program.  
 
Council Member Martha Sue Hall made a motion to endorse Career Headlight as a Workforce and 
Economic Development System to support jobs, economic growth and quality of life within the 
Centralina Region and Delegates commitment to communicate the Career Headlight system to each 
members governing body.  Commissioner Joe Carpenter seconded the motion, and it was carried 
unanimously. 
 
In response to Commissioner Ken Robertson’s question, Mr. Hollars explained that CCOG is asking 
Delegates to communicate the value of Career Headlight to their communities. 

 
5. Volunteer Transportation Services Update 

 

7



   
     

  
   
 

Katie Kutcher gave a presentation on the Volunteer Transportation Services program, which provides 
transportation to seniors, veterans, and individuals with disabilities. 
 
In response to Commissioner Carpenter’s question, Ms. Kutcher explained that the service is not 
affiliated with Meals on Wheels, but noted that both programs provide transportation to individuals 
who are unable to leave their homes. 
 
Commissioner Carpenter made a motion to endorse Volunteer Transportation Services as a regional 
transportation option initiative that improves quality of life and controls the cost of government.  
Commissioner Thurman Ross seconded the motion, and it was carried unanimously. 

 
6. CONNECT Update 

 
Mr. Prosser gave a brief update on the CONNECT Our Future project. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Deloris Chambers made a motion to request member communities to update State 
and Federal legislators on the CONNECT regional growth concept and strategies.  Commissioner 
McAulay seconded the motion. 
 
Council Member Hall expressed concern about a lack of time for communicating the value of the 
CONNECT project to State legislators before the General Assembly convenes in January.  She 
suggested contacting new legislators immediately after elections in November. 
 
Chairman Hall noted that Delegates should communicate the priorities of the CONNECT project to 
their colleagues in their communities. 
 
The motion was carried unanimously. 

 
7. Catawba – Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan Presentation 

 
Jason Wager and Barry Gullet, Chair of the Catawba Water Management Group, gave a presentation 
on the Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan. 
 
In response to Commissioner Robertson’s questions, Mr. Gullet explained that the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission Comprehensive Relicensing Agreement governs many aspects of lakes in the 
region.  He added that while the Master Plan is not a regulatory document, it provides the framework 
for ensuring that the region does not reach its water supply limits. 

 
Mr. Wager stated that CCOG will present a webinar on October 27 from 11:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. that 
will discuss the Master Plan and the role of local governments in the Centralina region. 
 
Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Gullet to keep delegates in the Yadkin River Basin updated on 
developments in that part of the region. 
 
Mr. Prosser noted that the Delegates will be asked to formally endorse the Master Plan at the Board’s 
February meeting. 
 

8. CCOG’s Conference – “Creative Solutions for Thriving Communities” 
 

8



   
     

  
   
 

Mr. Prosser stated that CCOG will need the Delegates’ assistance in promoting the conference. 
 
Emily Parker gave a presentation on the conference.  She noted that CCOG will send out marketing 
materials for Delegates to share with their fellow council members/commissioners.  She added that 
CCOG is asking for the Delegates’ assistance in reaching its goal of 100 registrants for the month. 
 
Commissioner McAulay made a motion to request Delegates to seek registration by elected officials, 
Board and Commission members, and staff in their communities.  Commissioner Ross seconded the 
motion, and it was carried unanimously. 

 
9. Comments from the Board of Delegates 

 
There were no comments from the Board of Delegates. 

 
10. Comments from the Chair 
 

Chairman Johnson noted that tonight was Treasurer Lindsey Dunevant’s last Board of Delegates 
meeting, given that he is not seeking re-election this November.  He thanked Commissioner Dunevant 
for his many years of service and dedication to CCOG and noted that his opinion has always been 
highly valued among fellow Board members. 
 

11. Comments from the Executive Director 
 
There were on comments from the Executive Director. 
 

12. Adjournment  
 
With no further business, Chairman Johnson adjourned the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Centralina Council of Governments complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability. Centralina Council of Governments will make reasonable accommodations in all programs/services to enable participation by an 
individual with a disability who meets essential eligibility requirements. Centralina Council of Governments’ programs will be available in the 
most integrated setting for each individual. If any accommodations are necessary for participation, please contact the Clerk to the Board, 525 
North Tryon Street, 12th Floor, Charlotte, NC 28202, kweston@centralina.org or phone (704) 348-2728. Please allow 72 hours advance notice for 
preparation.  Visit our website:  www.centralina.org. 

9

mailto:kweston@centralina.org
http://www.centralina.org/


 

 

 

 

Item 2 



 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting Date: February 11, 
2015 Agenda Item Type: Consent: X Regular:  

Submitting Person: Tonya Frye Presentation Time 
(est.): 5 minutes 

Presenter at meeting: Tonya Frye Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2716 
Email: tfrye@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact 
Person: Jim Prosser Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2703 

Email: jprosser@centralina.org 

Submitting Department: Finance Department Head 
Approval:  

Board Expectation: (required action or responsibility expected from Board members) 
The required action from the Board of Delegates is a review of financial information provided and comment 
on direction of investments for the remainder of the year. 
 
Description of Agenda Item:   (same wording as on agenda summary) 
The Statement of Activities for the period ending December 31, 2014 reflects the expenditures incurred and 
revenue earned through 50% of the fiscal year.  Revenues and expenditures are in line with the budget to 
date.  The report includes approximately $178,000 in unfunded expenditures for CONNECT-related close-
out activities. 
 
Management is meeting with the budget managers and the Board’s audit committee to evaluate the financial 
status and provide recommendations for adjustments. 
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

 

Action / Recommendation:  

For information and discussion purposes. 

Time Sensitivity (none or 
explain):  

As noted. 
 

Budget Impact (if 
applicable): As noted. 

List of Attachments (if 
any): Statement of Activities (Unaudited)  
 

10

mailto:TFRYE@CENTRALINA.ORG
mailto:JPROSSER@CENTRALINA.ORG


CENTRALINA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
January 14, 2015

FY2014-2015
FY2013-2014 Adopted FY2014-2015 % Earned To-Date

Audited Annual Actual or Incurred Budget Period
OPERATING REVENUES Activities Budget to-Date to-Date to-Date Variance

Program Revenues
Federal Grants 5,125,203          4,805,721             1,367,590             28% 2,402,861      (1,035,270)    
State Grants 37,171               334,749                29,234                  9% 167,375         (138,140)       
Technical Assistance Projects 367,278             421,943                201,805                48% 210,972         (9,167)           
Contracts 32,934               19,947                  7,153                    36% 9,974             (2,820)           
Program Revenue 209,181             252,224                23,588                  9% 126,112         (102,524)       
Total Program Revenue 5,771,767          5,834,584             1,629,371             2,917,292      (1,287,921)    

Other Revenues
Member Dues Support 759,278             726,252                758,766                104% 363,126         395,640        
Interest and General Revenue 223                    3,000                    139                       5% 1,500             (1,361)           
Sales Revenue 115,778             50,000                  77,608                  155% 25,000           52,608          
Total Other Revenues 875,279             779,252                836,512                389,626         446,886        

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 6,647,046          6,613,836             2,465,883             3,306,918      (841,035)       

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Board and Executive Committee 203,809             232,123                106,694                46% 116,062         9,368            
General Governance 1,589,845          1,477,238             763,887                52% 738,619         (25,268)         
CONNECT Sustainable Communities Initiative 2,337,042          1,550,935             913,431                59% 775,468         (137,964)       
Information Technology Division 95,745               219,456                106,867                49% 109,728         2,861            
Community and Economic Development 579,322             590,349                302,338                51% 295,175         (7,164)           
Planning, Assistance, and Administration 864,558             911,341                465,934                51% 455,671         (10,263)         
Area Agency on Aging 1,933,558          1,968,303             1,075,307             55% 984,152         (91,155)         
Workforce Development 1,023,323          1,455,349             440,108                30% 727,675         287,567        
Indirect Costs Representation (1,548,707)         (1,791,258)            (943,489)               53% (895,629)        47,860          

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 7,078,495          6,613,836             3,231,076             3,306,918      75,842          

Statement of Activities (Unaudited)
for FY2014-2015 Operating Budget

for Period Ended December 31, 2014

11



 

 

 

 

Item 3 



 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting Date: February 11, 
2015 Agenda Item Type: Consent: X Regular:  

Submitting Person: Vicki Bott Presentation Time (est.): 5 minutes 

Presenter at meeting: Vicki Bott Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2702 
Email: vbott@centralina.org  

Alternate Contact Person: Bill McNair 
Phone Number/Ext: 704-375-0057 
Email: wmcnair@slk.com  

Submitting Department: General 
Government 

Department Head 
Approval: Jim Prosser 

Board Expectation: (required action or responsibility expected from Board members) 
Consider reaffirmation of proposed amendments to the Bylaws as recommended by Legal Counsel and 
Staff, and as reviewed by the Executive Board. 
Description of Agenda Item:   (same wording as on agenda summary) 

Proposed amendments to CCOG Bylaws were included in the consent agenda for the October 8, 2014 
Delegates meeting and received unanimous approval; however, a quorum was not present, so the 
amendments were not officially adopted and are thus presented for consideration again.  The purpose of 
these amendments is to (a) adjust the timing of presentation of the Nominating Committee’s slate of 
nominees for Officer elections, (b) clarify terminology used regarding municipalities’ representation on the 
Executive Board, and (c) make minor, non-substantive changes (e.g. typos).  The specific changes proposed 
are found in the attached document titled “Centralina Council of Governments Proposed Bylaws 
Amendments for Board of Delegates Consideration October 8, 2014.” 

[Note that a two-thirds majority vote and proper advance notice are both required in order to amend the 
Bylaws at a meeting at which a quorum is present (see Article XI Amendments of Bylaws).]  
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

A) Changes to Article IX Officers, Section B “Nominating Committee and Election”:  Through an 
oversight, the May 2014 Bylaws amendments did not include a change concerning the Nominating 
Committee’s duties that is needed for consistency with the changes made to the timing of the Officer 
elections. The May 2014 amendments moved the Officer elections to the first meeting of each calendar 
year, but inadvertently left the Nominating Committee’s report of nominees in the last meeting of the 
calendar year.  Since the intent of the original Bylaws was to have these happen at the same meeting, the 
recommendation is to change the Bylaws to state that nominations are to be presented at the meeting at 
which Officer elections are held. 

The proposed amendments make no changes regarding nominations from the floor or to the elections 
themselves. 

B) Changes to Article VII Executive Board, Section A “Membership”:  The recommended changes 
provide consistency in referring to “County area” to mean the municipal jurisdictions within a given county 
who are entitled between them to one representative on the Executive Board, and in using “County” alone 
to mean the county governments themselves that are each entitled to one representative on the Executive 
Board. 

C) Changes to Articles III.C, IX.A, and XII:  If the changes described above are acceptable, this presents 
an opportune time to correct some non-substantive typos and make minor stylistic changes. 
Action / Recommendation:  

Legal Counsel and Staff recommend approval of the following motion: 

“I move that, notice having been properly given in accordance with Article XI of the Centralina 

12

mailto:vbott@centralina.org
mailto:wmcnair@slk.com


 

Council of Governments Bylaws, the proposed amendments to the Bylaws be approved as shown in 
the document titled “Centralina Council of Governments Proposed Bylaws Amendments for Board 
of Delegates Consideration October 8, 2014”. 

Alternatively, the Board may approve the proposed amendments with modifications or decline to approve 
any amendments.  [Any motion to amend will require a quorum and a two-thirds majority vote to pass.] 

Time Sensitivity (none or 
explain):  

The proposed amendment to Article IX.B is time-sensitive, as it will bring 
into conformity with the Bylaws the presentation at this Board meeting of 
the Nominating Committee’s report for election of officers.   
The other proposed amendments are not time-sensitive. 

Budget Impact (if 
applicable): 

 
n/a 
 

List of Attachments (if any): 
Centralina Council of Governments Proposed Bylaws Amendments for 
Board of Delegates Consideration October 8, 2014 
 

 

13



 

CENTRALINA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
Proposed Bylaws Amendments for Board of Delegates Consideration October 8, 2014 

 
Legal Counsel and Staff recommend and the Executive Board has reviewed the proposed 
amendments to Article III.C, VII.A, IX.A-B, and XII of the Bylaws shown below in red-lined 
format. 
If approved at the October 8, 2014 meeting of the Board of Delegatees by a two-thirds majority 
vote, and provided that a quorum is present, the amended Bylaws will be signed by the Chair of 
the Council (as attested by the Clerk) under the statement below: 

“The foregoing Bylaws, as amended this date, were duly adopted by the Centralina 
Council of Governments at its regular meeting held October 8, 2014, and shall be 
effective upon adoption.” 

 
 Article III:  MEMBERSHIP 

… 
C.   Withdrawal of a Member:  Any member of the Council may withdraw or 

terminate its membership on the Council effective at the end of any fiscal year (June 30) by 

timely notifying all members of the Council of its intent to terminate its membership.  Notice 

shall consist of mailing a  certified copy of the resolution of withdrawal from the member’s  

governing body to the delegate of each Council member.  This notice shall be sent by U.S. Mail 

no later than January 1 preceding the end of the fiscal year for which the member’s withdrawal is 

to be effective.  A member withdrawing shall not be entitled to any rebate of dues or assessments 

for the current fiscal year.  Timely and proper notice of withdrawal may not be waived by the 

Council.  Upon the failure of such member to give the prescribed notice in compliance with  the 

Charter and these Bylaws, such member shall continue to be a member until the end of the fiscal 

year in which timely and proper notice is given.  Such member shall also be responsible for the 

payment of all l dues and assessments until the end of the fiscal year for which a timely and 

proper notice was given.  Any jurisdiction which has withdrawn from the Council and reapplies 

for membership in the Council shall p ay any delinquent dues or assessments before being 

permitted to rejoin the Council. 

14



Centralina Council of Governments Bylaws  | as amended May 14, 2014 

 

… 
Article VII:  EXECUTIVE BOARD 

 
A.   Membership:  The Executive Board shall be composed of:  (1) The officers of 

the Council, (2) the delegate from each County member government, (3) the delegate from the 

City of Charlotte, and (4) one municipal delegate from each County area representing all 

municipalities within such cCounty area, including one to represent the municipalities in the 

Mecklenburg County area other than the City of Charlotte. Provided, however, if a county, a 

cCounty area, or the City of Charlotte has a delegate who is an officer of the Council, that unit 

shall not be entitled to an additional representative on the Executive Board.  The municipal 

delegates from all municipal member government units within each cCounty area (excluding the 

City of Charlotte delegate as to the Mecklenburg County area) shall elect from their number by 

caucus at the first Council meeting of the calendar year, the municipal delegate from the cCounty 

area to serve on the Executive Board.  Only delegates (not alternates) may serve on the 

Executive Board.   

… 
Article IX:  OFFICERS 

A. Designation and Term:  The Council officers shall consist of a Chair, a Vice-

Chair, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, who shall be elected and installed at the first regular meeting 

of the Council each year. Officers shall be electedserve for a term of one year, or until their 

successors are elected.  In addition, the immediate past Chair of the Council shall continue to 

serve as an officer of the Council as long as he or she remains a delegate.   

B. Nominating Committee and Election:  The Executive Board, at or prior to its 

last regular meeting each yearthe Council meeting each year at which elections are to be held, 

shall appoint a nNominating cCommittee of three (3) delegates.  At the Council’s meeting each 

15



Centralina Council of Governments Bylaws  | as amended May 14, 2014 

 

year at which the elections are to be held, and prior to the election of officers by the Council at 

that meeting, the Nominating Committee who shall submit to the Council the names of proposed 

officers at the last regular meeting  of the Council each year, at which meeting the election shall 

be held.  Nominations from the floor may be made.  The person receiving the highest number of 

votes cast for each office shall be deemed elected.   

… 
Article XII:  NOTICES 

Whenever the Charter, these Bylaws, a resolution of the Council or the laws of this state 

require (a) the giving of notice to the delegates of any meeting of the Council or of any other 

matter requiring notice to a member government or its delegate, or (b) require the dissemination 

of agendas, budgets or other materials to a member government or its delegate, such notice shall 

be written and may be disseminated by mail or electronically as authorized by the Electronic 

Commerce Act (N.C.G.S. §66-58.1 et seq.) and the Uniform Electronic Transaction Act 

(N.C.G.S. §66-33-311 et seq.).  Such dissemination of notice shall be deemed to have been given 

when same has been either (a) addressed to the delegate at the mailing address certified to the 

Council as the mailing address of such delegate, and deposited, postage prepaid, in the United 

States mail, or (b) transmitted electronically to the electronic address of such delegate theretofore 

certified to the Council. 

 
[End of proposed Amendments.] 

16



 

 

 

 

Item 4 



Presentation to be made at Board of Delegates meeting. 

17



 

 

 

 

Item 5 



Presentation to be made at Board of Delegates meeting. 

18



 

 

 

 

Item 6 



Presentation to be made at Board of Delegates meeting. 

19



 

 

 

 

Item 7 



Presentation to be made at Board of Delegates meeting. 

20



 

 

 

 

Item 8 



Presentation to be made at Board of Delegates meeting. 

21



 

 

 

 

Item 9 



 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting Date: February 11, 
2015 Agenda Item Type: Consent:  Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Tonya Frye Presentation Time 
(est.): 5 minutes 

Presenter at meeting: Tonya Frye Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2716 
Email: tfrye@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact 
Person: Jim Prosser Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2703 

Email: jprosser@centralina.org 

Submitting Department: Finance Department Head 
Approval:  

Board Expectation: (required action or responsibility expected from Board members) 
The required action from the Board members is approval of the Centralina COG Annual Operating Budget 
Ordinance in the amount of $5,062,901 for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Description of Agenda Item:   (same wording as on agenda summary) 
The Board Treasurer and Finance Director will present an annual budget proposal for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 for the Board’s approval in May 2015 when the Council will have more definitive grant information.  
This proposal will include three budget options – 1) low risk with confirmed revenue support; 2) no merit 
adjustments; and 3) adjustments for medical insurance.  It will also reflect any other direction provided by 
the Board, for example, continued administration of the Volunteer Transportation Services program.   
 
To comply with the charter, however, Management is submitting a Fiscal Year 2015-2016 placeholder 
budget for approval.  The Executive Board voted to recommend this proposed budget to the Board of 
Delegates in January 2015.  Management is requesting the Board of Delegates’s approval of this proposed 
budget.  
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

In Item IX Financial, D of the Charter Resolution, the budget for the Council must be adopted by the 
Council no later than April 15th of each year.  The Board of Delegates meets in February and then again in 
May, so the adoption must occur in February 2015 to comply with the Charter. 

Action / Recommendation:  
I move to approve the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Centralina COG annual operating budget ordinance in the 
amount of $5,062,901. 

Time Sensitivity (none or 
explain):  

 
 
 

Budget Impact (if 
applicable): As noted. 

List of Attachments (if 
any): 

 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 operating budget proposal 
 

 

22

mailto:TFRYE@CENTRALINA.ORG
mailto:JPROSSER@CENTRALINA.ORG


Centralina Council of Governments
February 11, 2015

FY2013-2014 FY2013-2014 FY2014-2015 FY2015-2016
ANTICIPATED REVENUES Final Audited Amended* Proposed

Budget Actuals Budget Budget

Program Revenues
Federal Grants 7,184,939         5,125,203          4,805,721          3,254,786          
State Grants 371,407            37,171               334,749             334,749             
Technical Assistance Projects 401,588            367,278             421,943             421,943             
Contracts 22,278              32,934               19,947               19,947               
Program Revenue 316,169            209,181             252,224             252,224             
Total Program Revenue 8,296,381         5,771,767          5,834,584          4,283,649          

Other Revenues
Member Dues Support 726,252            759,278             726,252             726,252             
Interest Revenue 3,000                3,000                 3,000                 
Sales Revenue 75,000              116,001             50,000               50,000               
Total Other Revenues 804,252            875,279             779,252             779,252             

TOTAL ANTICIPATED REVENUES 9,100,633         6,647,046          6,613,836          5,062,901          

EXPENSE APPROPRIATIONS
Board and Executive Committee 231,694            203,809             232,123             232,123             
General Governance 1,763,445         1,589,845          1,477,238          1,477,238          
CONNECT Sustainable Communities Initiative 2,994,992         2,337,042          1,550,935          -                    
Information Technology Division 112,143            95,745               219,456             219,456             
Community and Economic Development 648,398            579,322             590,349             590,349             
Planning Department 880,503            864,558             911,341             911,341             
Area Agency on Aging 1,959,265         1,933,558          1,968,303          1,968,303          
Workforce Development 2,386,741         1,023,323          1,455,349          1,455,349          
Indirect Costs Representation (1,876,548)        (1,548,707)        (1,791,256)        (1,791,256)        

TOTAL EXPENSE APPROPRIATIONS 9,100,633         7,078,495          6,613,836          5,062,901          

*As of September 10, 2014

Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016 Proposed Annual Budget Ordinance

23



 

 

 

 

Item 10 



 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting Date: February 11, 
2015 Agenda Item Type: Consent:  Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Tonya Frye Presentation Time 
(est.): 5 minutes 

Presenter at meeting: Tonya Frye Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2716 
Email: tfrye@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact 
Person: Jim Prosser Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2703 

Email: jprosser@centralina.org 

Submitting Department: Finance Department Head 
Approval:  

Board Expectation: (required action or responsibility expected from Board members) 
The required action from the Board of Delegates is approval of the Centralina COG Grant Projects Budget 
Ordinance in the amount of $15,515,628 for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Description of Agenda Item:   (same wording as on agenda summary) 
The Board Treasurer and Finance Director will present a grant projects budget proposal for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 for the Board’s approval in May 2015 when the Council will have more definitive grant 
information.   
 
To comply with the charter, however, Management is submitting a Fiscal Year 2015-2016 placeholder 
budget for approval.  The Executive Board voted to recommend this proposed budget to the Board of 
Delegates in January 2015.  Management is requesting the Board of Delegates’s approval of this proposed 
budget. 
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

In Item IX Financial, D of the Charter Resolution, the budget for the Council must be adopted by the 
Council no later than April 15th of each year.  The Board of Delegates meets in February and then again in 
May, so the adoption must occur in February 2015 to comply with the Charter. 

Action / Recommendation:  
I move to approve the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Centralina COG grant projects budget ordinance in the 
amount of $15,515,628. 

Time Sensitivity (none or 
explain):  

 
 
 

Budget Impact (if 
applicable): As noted. 

List of Attachments (if 
any): 

 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 grant projects budget proposal  

 

24

mailto:TFRYE@CENTRALINA.ORG
mailto:JPROSSER@CENTRALINA.ORG


Centralina Council of Governments
February 11, 2015

FY2014-2015 FY2015-2016
Adopted Proposed

Program Budget Budget

Workforce Development
Adult Services Program Year 2014 1,506,714             -                        
Dislocated Worker Program Year 2014 1,667,991             -                        
Youth Services Program Year 2014 1,403,267             -                        
Adult Services Program Year 2015 1,506,714             
Dislocated Worker Program Year 2015 1,667,991             
Youth Services Program Year 2015 1,403,267             

4,577,972             4,577,972             

Area Agency on Aging
HCC Block Grant 8,556,735 8,556,735
USDA Supplement 700,000 700,000
Title III-B Legal 76,730 76,730
Family Caregiver 550,968 550,968
Disease Prevention/Health Promotion 45,000 45,000
State Senior Center General Purpose 50,000 50,000
Title V 938,223 938,223
Heat Fan Relief 20,000 20,000

10,937,656           10,937,656           

Total Grant Projects Budget 15,515,628           15,515,628           

Fiscal Year 2015 -2016 Proposed Grant Projects Budget Proposal

25



 

 

 

 

Item 11 



 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting Date: February 11, 
2015 Agenda Item Type: Consent:  Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Tonya Frye Presentation Time 
(est.): 5 minutes 

Presenter at meeting: Tonya Frye Phone Number/Ext: 2716 
Email: tfrye@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact 
Person: Jim Prosser Phone Number/Ext: 2703 

Email: jprosser@centralina.org 

Submitting Department: Finance Department Head 
Approval:  

Board Expectation: (required action or responsibility expected from Board members) 
The required action from the Board members is approval to set the assessment rate for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 at $0.24 per capita with a minimum assessment amount of $750 per member. 
 
Description of Agenda Item:   (same wording as on agenda summary) 
The Board Treasurer and Finance Director will present an annual budget proposal for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 for the Board’s approval in May 2015 when the Council will have more definitive grant information.  
The budget will reflect membership assessments at a rate of $0.24 per capita for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.  
This has been the rate for member assessments since Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  The assessments are based on 
the 2010 North Carolina Census results and will be a minimum of $750 for all members. 
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

In Item IX Financial, D of the Charter Resolution, the assessment for each member governmental unit must 
be adopted by the Council no later than April 15th of each year.  The Board of Delegates meets in February 
and then again in May, so the adoption must occur in February 2015 to comply with the Charter. 

Action / Recommendation:  
I move to set the assessment rate for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 at $0.24 per capita with a minimum assessment 
amount of $750 per member. 
Time Sensitivity (none or 
explain):  

As noted. 
 

Budget Impact (if 
applicable): As noted. 

List of Attachments (if 
any): None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

26

mailto:TFRYE@CENTRALINA.ORG
mailto:JPROSSER@CENTRALINA.ORG


 

 

 

 

Item 12 



 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting Date: February 11, 
2015 Agenda Item Type: Consent:  Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Tonya Frye Presentation Time 
(est.): 5 minutes 

Presenter at meeting: Jim Prosser Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2716 
Email: tfrye@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact 
Person: Jim Prosser Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2703 

Email: jprosser@centralina.org 

Submitting Department: Finance Department Head 
Approval:  

Board Expectation: (required action or responsibility expected from Board members) 
The required action from the Board of Delegates is approval of the contractual obligation for the office 
space in the amount not to exceed $352,000 included in the proposed operating budget for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016. 
Description of Agenda Item:   (same wording as on agenda summary) 
The proposed operating budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 includes an appropriation of approximately 
$352,000 for occupancy costs associated with the 12th floor office space located at 525 North Tryon Street.  
Management is requesting the Board of Delegates approve this contractual obligation. 
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 
The lease for Centralina Office space was approved in May 2010 and extends to May 2018. While the lease 
has been approved for this period of time, approval of the expenditure to support the lease payment must be 
approved annually. 
 
In Article IV: Contracts, Expenditure of Funds, Execution of Documents, A. Approval of Contracts of the 
Bylaws, contracts which relate to the use of local funds in the amount or value of more than $200,000, shall 
first be submitted to and approved by the Executive Board of the Council.  The occupancy contract is over 
$200,000 and must, therefore, be approved by the Board. 
 
In anticipation of the lease expiration in May of 2018, staff will begin to develop options to renewing this 
lease. Those options will include building new, purchase existing, leasing other space and renewing 
exisiting lease.  The staff will seek establishing a Board Committee to help guide this process which is 
expected to begin within the next six months.  
Action / Recommendation:  
I move to approve the contractual obligation for the office space in the amount not to exceed $352,000 
included in the proposed operating budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
Time Sensitivity (none or 
explain):  

As noted. 
 

Budget Impact (if 
applicable): As noted. 

List of Attachments (if 
any): None 
 

27

mailto:TFRYE@CENTRALINA.ORG
mailto:JPROSSER@CENTRALINA.ORG


 

 

 

 

Item 13 



 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting Date: February 11, 
2015  Consent:  Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Jason Wager Presentation Time 
(est.): 5 minutes 

Presenter at meeting: 
Jason Wager 
amd Barry 
Gullet 

Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2707 

Email: jwager@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact Person: Michelle 
Nance 

Phone Number/Ext: 704-348-2709 
Email: mnance@centralina.org  

Submitting Department: Planning Department Head 
Approval:  

Description of Agenda Item:   (same wording as on agenda summary) 

Resolution to Support The Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan 

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 
The Catawba-Wateree Water Management Group has completed the first phase of a Basin-wide Water 
Supply Master Plan (WSMP). The Master Plan provides a framework for effective management and 
stewardship through regional partnership and cooperation. The recommendations in the Master Plan are 
designed to support the growing needs of the region into the next century. 

o The complete plan, an executive summary, and other related documents are available at: 
http://catawbawatereewmg.org/projects.html  

o A recording of a webinar and slides presented that go deeper into this topic are posted at: 
http://www.centralina.org/regional-planning/energy-enviroment/water-groups/  or 
www.catawbawatereewmg.org  

 
Throughout  the Fall of 2014 and January 2015 CW WMG Chair Barry Gullet has presented this document 
and its major outputs to our Executive Board and Board of Delegates.  At these meetings he and Centralina 
staff have identified comments, questions, concerns, or requests for additional information that will be 
considered in a planned WSMP addendum process planned for the Spring of 2015.  This input is included 
in the attached. 
 
Of the 18 public water utilities in North and South Carolina which operate water intakes on either a 
reservoir or along the main stem of the Catawba river, 13 resolutions have been approved.  Four groups 
have not formally considered the resolution yet. Lincoln County is considering the resolution and has not 
made a final decision at this time. 
Action / Recommendation:  

Vote on Adoption of a Resolution of Support for this Plan. 

Time Sensitivity (none or 
explain):  None 

Budget Impact (if 
applicable): 

 
 

List of Attachments (if 
any): 

Resolution to Support the Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply 
Master Plan 

Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan: Questions, 
Comments, and Concerns 

 

28

mailto:jwager@centralina.org
mailto:mnance@centralina.org
http://catawbawatereewmg.org/projects.html
http://www.centralina.org/regional-planning/energy-enviroment/water-groups/
http://www.catawbawatereewmg.org/


RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT THE  
 

CATAWBA-WATEREE RIVER BASIN WATER SUPPLY MASTER PLAN  
(DATED FEBRUARY 11, 2015)  

 
AS DEVELOPED BY THE CATAWBA-WATEREE WATER MANAGEMENT GROUP 

 
 

WHEREAS, Centralina Council of Governments and others depend on the Catawba-Wateree 
River Basin for a safe, reliable drinking water supply; and  
 

WHEREAS, recent engineering studies have indicated significant water supply limitations as 
soon as mid-century (~Year 2050) in the Catawba-Wateree River and its eleven reservoirs; and 

 
WHEREAS, water is a critical resource for sustaining the economic, environmental, and social 

well-being of the region; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Catawba-Wateree Water Management Group has completed this Master Plan to 

secure a more sustainable water supply for future generations; and  
 
WHEREAS, implementing actions called for in this Master Plan could take decades to 

successfully complete; and  
 
WHEREAS, the input and concerns gathered through engagement of the region’s local 

government representatives will be considered by the Catawba-Wateree Water Management Group in 
future planned addendums to the Master Plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, we believe the Master Plan findings and recommendations achieve the goal of 

protecting, preserving, and extending the available water supply for all those that depend, or will depend, 
on this Catawba-Wateree River Basin for a safe, sustainable water supply; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Delegates of Centralina Council of 

Governments hereby supports the 2014 Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan, the 
recommendations presented therein, and future recommendations to be considered as they are presented 
and available during the plan’s implementation.   

 
Adopted this 11th day of February 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Chair, CCOG Board of Delegates Clerk to the Board 

29



Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan  

Questions, Comments, and Concerns 

The below feedback was gathered through three different venues including COG Executive Board 
meetings, a Board of Delegate meeting, and a webinar.  Last fall a presentation was given by Barry 
Gullet, Chair of the Catawba-Wateree Water Management Group, to both the Executive Board and 
Board of Delegates on the recently completed Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan 
(WSMP).  This was also accompanies by a brief context presentation of the Role of Communities Across 
the Region in Cross-Basin, Multi-jurisdictional Water Resource Planning provided by Jason Wager, 
Centralina COG Planning Program Supervisor—Sustainability.  Pursuant to this, a more robust webinar 
provided greater detail and more extensive responses to participant questions.  Finally, additional 
feedback was received at the January 2015 Executive Board meeting.  All questions and feedback are 
included below, broken out by event and listed chronologically. 

COG Executive Board, September 10, 2014 

Impoundments- What might their role be in assuring and impact on quantity? 

How does the WSMP address water loss thru existing utility systems?  

How will property values along our water sources be impacted and in what ways does the WSMP 
address this?  

Now that the initial WSMP is completed, what comes next?:  

Can a webinar to review report w/ COG membership in greater detail be provided? 

What are the impacts on Mountain Island Lake specifically (as a major water source)?  

COG Board of Delegates, October 8, 2014 

Who owns the water? 

Can you clarify/explain the differences in projections from other planning efforts, such as the FERC 
process in the Catawba basin, regarding future availability of the water supply? 

What impact does the Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan have on IBT issues? 

  

30



Webinar: Water Supply Master Plan for the Catawba-Wateree River, October 27, 2014 

Questions: 

1. What is impact on Mountain Island Lake as a water source? 

2. Why was 2100 chosen as an end date for the study?  Are there any components of the plan that 
look at long term sustainability beyond 2100? 

3. Slide 14 stated that inflow is 3,752 mgd—is this number in addition to each of the individual 
reservoirs? 

4. Is there any awareness of comparable work being conducted on any other basins in the region? 

5. How can we get copies of the slides of this webinar?  [A full recording of the webinar is also 
available at the Centralina link] 

http://www.centralina.org/regional-planning/energy-enviroment/water-groups/  
or www.catawbawatereewmg.org  

COG Executive Board, January 14, 2015 

The following additional inputs were received at the presentation of the “Resolution to Support The  
Catawba-Wateree River Basin Water Supply Master Plan as Developed By the Catawba-Wateree Water 
Management Group.”   Specifically, comments were received from the Catawba River Keeper and 
delegate Martin Oakes of Lincoln County.  These comments are included below. 

I would like to speak in opposition to Item 8.  The following are my comments: 

        1) I've heard this presentation twice now, read every page of the "plan", and have a copy of the 
water model on my computer (my last 15 years in business was as a computer model  builder).   The 
model permits Lake Norman water levels to be 2 ft BELOW the drought of record.  Lakefront members on 
the board should remember how bad that was and just add another 2 ft. 

         2) There is NO plan to handle drought conditions.  On p193-194 of the plan it essentially says that 
during a drought "we'll do something".    

        4) The thirteen "boards" to which have approved are the ones which own the water utilities that 
make up CWWMG.  No other boards (e.g. Mecklenburg County, Iredell County, Catawba County) have 
been consulted.   Lincoln County was presented this plan and did not approve it but tabled it pending a 
full discussion between the Lake Norman Marine Commissioner and CWWMG, which hasn't happened. 

        5) Despite the fancy video of boating on the Lake, the plan contains NO mention of recreational uses 
of the lake, nor of any effect on lake businesses such as marinas. 

        6) Finally, you are being asked to approve a 300+ page document, and references to a computer 
model which very few can understand.   This is reminiscent of Nancy Pelosi telling Congress that they 
have to pass the Affordable Care Act in order to see what's in it. 

        Martin Oakes 
        Commissioner, Lincoln County 

31

http://www.centralina.org/regional-planning/energy-enviroment/water-groups/
http://www.catawbawatereewmg.org/


  
  
  

 

  
 
 
Centralin
c/o Mr. J
525 Nort
Charlotte
 
 
Re:  Com
 
Jason: 
 
Thank yo
(WSMP) 
apprecia
present o
commen
 
The Cata
one of th
also one 
utilities a
region ha
Wateree
and their
recomme
up the re
the plan 
plan shou
want to m
assumpti
 
At the ou
this plan 
(water ut

            
 
            

 

na Council of
ason Wager
th Tryon Stre
e, NC 28202 

mments on W

ou for allowi
before the p
te your willi
our commen
ts. 

wba‐Watere
he most stre
of the faste
and Duke En
ave a sustain
 Water Man
r conscientio
endations fo
esponse to lo
does enoug
uld not be p
make sure th
ions and pre

utset, it shou
from a very
tilities and D

A
      421 Minue

   Charlotte 
      Phone:  70

   

f Governmen
r 
eet, 12th Floo

Water Supply

ng us an opp
plan is voted
ngness to fo
nts in‐person

ee River Bas
ssed, endan
st growing r
ergy for atte
nable supply
nagement Gr
ous hard wo
or greater wa
ow‐inflow sit
h to address
erceived as 
hat the plan 
edictions abo

uld be ackno
y different pe
Duke Energy)

A WATERKEEP
et Ln Ste 205 
 NC  28217-27
04-679-9494 

www.cata

nts 

or 

y Master Plan

portunity to 
d on by your
orward our c
n or to be pr

in (the “Basi
gered and th
regions in th
empting to d
y of clean wa
roup should 
rk to develo
ater conserv
tuations.  No
s future wat
criticism of t
is the best p
out the futu

owledged tha
erspective th
), which use 

 
PER ALLIANCE

 P.O. 
784 Cha
 Fax: 
wbariverkeep

 
 

January 12,

n 

provide inp
Executive C

comments to
resent to ans

in”) has bee
hreatened r
e U.S. We co
develop a pla
ater for the f
be lauded fo
p a plan.  W
vation by loc
onetheless, 
er threats.  O
the individu
possible plan
re of the bas

at the Cataw
han the mem
water from

E® Member 
 Box 11838 
rlotte, NC  282
    704-679-955
per.org 

 2015 

ut on the W
Committee a
o your mem
swer any qu

n identified 
iver basins i
omplement 
an to assure
future.  The 
or their fore

We are partic
cal communi
we do have 
Our questio
als who wor
n based upo
sin. 

wba Riverkee
mbers of the
 the Catawb

 

220 
59 

Water Supply 
nd the gene
bers.  We re
estions abo

by various o
n the United
the commun
e that the res
members of
esight in add
ularly enthu
ities and cha
questions a
ns and conc
rked on the 
on the best p

eper Founda
e Water Man
ba‐Wateree 

Master Plan
eral member
emain willing
ut our 

organization
d States.  It i
nities, water
sidents of th
f the Catawb
ressing this 
usiastic abou
anges to spe
about wheth
erns about t
plan.  We si
possible 

ation approa
nagement G
River to sup

n 
rs.  I 
g to 

ns as 
s 
r 
he 
ba‐
issue 
ut the 
eed 
er 
the 
mply 

aches 
roup 
ply 

32



Centralina
January 1
Page 2 

their cus
dependin
and strea
adequate
health of
River.  
 
Although
makes se
that the 
prematu
region fo
(CCOG) s
recomme
finalizing
 

We belie
of the cit
are not a
both nee
 

The Cata
Council o
the publi
recomme
River.”  In
was an n
environm
narrow in
CCOG, th
Riverkee
 

a Council of G
2, 2015 

tomers with
ng on the Riv
ams in the re
e supply of c
f ecosystem.

h we support
ense to begin
plan does no
re to approv
or the forese
support the s
endations, b
g the WSMP:

 finaliz

 give g

 consid
entire

 Condu
impac
 

eve that furth
tizens in the 
aggressive en
eded and cos

wba Riverke
of Governme
ic and policy
endation of 
n part, the r
eed for an a
mental issues
nterests.    N
hrough the m
per Foundat

Governments 

h electricity a
ver for elect
egion for rec
clean water i
.  Moreover,

t many aspe
n implement
ot go far eno
ve the docum
eeable future
some of the 
but direct the
: 

ze the water

greater consi

der the cost 
e Catawba‐W

uct a thorou
cts of the pla

her analysis 
entire Cataw
nough and t
st effective. 

eeper Found
ents in order
y makers abo
the study w
eason for th
advocate to p
s that would
Not only did 
marine comm
tion.    

and water.  L
ricity and w
creation, hav
in the River,
, many of ou

ects of the pr
ting these as
ough to addr
ment as a fin
e.  We recom
recommend
e Water Ma

r model on w

ideration to 

effectivenes
Watree River

gh and publ
an.   

of all of the 
wba‐Watere
hat addition

Ba

dation was cr
r to provide,
out issues af
as to “Estab
he recomme
provide the 
d counterbal
the CCOG de
missions, pro

 
Like most cit
ater, most o
ve homes w
 and believe
ur members 

roposed plan
spects of the
ress the wat
nal master p
mmend that 
dations of th
nagement G

which the pla

maintaining

ss of various
r Basin and a

ic analysis o

costs and b
ee River Basi
nal methods 

ackground 
 

reated as a r
, in part, an i
ffecting the C
blish a River‐
ndation was
COG and ot
ance the pe
ecide that a 
ovided the fi

tizens of the
of our memb
hose value t
e that the Riv
operate bus

n (e.g., wate
e plan as soo
ter needs of 
lan to addre
the Central
he plan as pr
Group to do t

an is based, 

g adequate e

s options fro
all of its resid

of the econo

enefits view
in will show 
of reducing 

result of a st
independen
Catawba Riv
keeping Syst
s that the Ce
her policym
erspective of
Riverkeepe
inancial supp

e region, in a
bers make us
to depends i
ver is impor
sinesses that

er conservat
on as possib
the region a
ess the wate
ina Council o
reliminary 
the followin

 

ecological flo

om the persp
dent, and  

mic and env

wed from a p
that the con
water consu

tudy by the C
nt source of i
ver.  The FIRS
tem on the C
entralina CO
akers with in
f businesses 
r program w
port to start

addition to 
se of the Riv
in part of an
tant for the 
t depend on

ion), and it 
ble, we believ
and that it is
er needs of t
of Governm

ng things bef

ows in the R

pective of th

vironmental 

perspective o
nservation g
umption are

Centralina 
information 
ST 
Catawba 
G felt that t
nput on 
and other 

was needed, 
t the Catawb

ver 
 

n the 

ve 
s 
he 
ents 

fore 

iver,  

he 

of all 
goals 
e 

for 

here 

but 
ba 

33



Centralina
January 1
Page 3 

We hope
input on 
Plan that
from all s
importan
 

 
Scope of 
 

 T
ex
th
in
th
8
th
o

 In
o
u
fa
a
re
re
 

Water M
 

 A
fo
th
in

 T
a 
th
m
u
W
th
C

 Tw
re

a Council of G
2, 2015 

e that the me
water issue
t it provides 
sides of the 
nt as the Wa

the propose

he proposed
xpressly def
he plan igno
ncluded as p
he Lake Wat
0 miles beyo
he impact of
f the basin t

n general, w
utside of the
sers located
ails to give co
rtificially def
esidents on t
educing the 

Modeling (CH

As noted in th
oundational
he model ov
naccurate im

he model us
completely 
he Water Ma
modernize CH
nclear if the

WSMP.  The v
hat has not y
arolina Law.

wo normal s
eplicate the 

Governments 

embership w
s to have th
to other gro
issue and as
ter Supply M

ed Water Sup

d WSMP pur
fines “Basin”
res the impa
art of the pl
teree Dam a
ond the Wat
f the plan on
that is mana

hen evaluat
e Catawba‐W
d outside of t
onsideration
fined Basin b
the Wateree
flow of the W

HEOPS) 

he proposed
 to ensuring
verestimates
mpression th

sed to projec
different pu
anagement 
HEOPS and a
e revised mo
version of th
yet complete
.   

scientific sta
results using

will allow an 
e same acce
oups.  In add
sk questions 
Master Plan.

Plan Con

pply Master 

rports to be 
” to be the “C
act of the pla
an inaccurat
lthough the
teree Dam.  
n the entire C
ged by Duke

ing options,
Wateree Rive
the Basin bu
n to potentia
boundary (su
e River below
Wateree Riv

d WSMP, “ac
g a sustainab
s the amoun
at the plan w

ct future wa
urpose (effic
Group’s con
adapt the mo
del is suffici
he CHEOPS m
ed the publi

ndards for r
g the model

 
organizatio

ess to its me
dition, we ho
to both side
    

ncerns, Addit

Plan 

a plan for th
Catawba‐Wa
an on most 
tely show th
Wateree Riv
For purpose
Catawba‐Wa
e Energy. 

the propose
er basin (e.g
ut supplied fr
al negative i
uch as the im
w the Water
ver to approx

ccurately pro
ble water su
t of water in
was adequat

ter use is CH
iently opera
nsultant (HD
odel to a dif
ently reliabl
model on wh
c comment 

reliability of 
 and for the 

n it created 
mbers abou
ope that the 
es before the

tions 

he Catawba‐
ateree River
of the Wate
he Catawba‐
ver (and the
es of our com
ateree River

ed WSMP in
g., benefits o
rom facilitie
mpacts of th
mpact of red
ree Dam or t
ximately 15%

ojecting futu
upply in the 
n the system
te to addres

HEOPS, whic
ating hydroe
R) has done 
fferent use t
e to serve a
hich the plan
and review 

a model are
 model to ap

for the purp
t the Water 
CCOG mem
ey take actio

‐Wateree Riv
r Basin” (WS
eree River an
Wateree Ba
e basin) cont
mments, we 
r basin not ju

cludes bene
of electricity 
s on the Cat
he plan beyo
duced flow o
the ecologic
%  of averag

ure water u
Basin.”  (WS

m, it could cre
ss future wat

ch was origin
electric facilit
extensive w

than it was d
s the basis f
n is based is 
process req

e for others t
ppear to app

pose of prov
 Manageme

mbership will
on on an issu

ver Basin an
SMP at xix), b
nd the maps 
sin as endin
tinue for ano
have consid
ust the porti

efits of the p
and water f
tawba River)
ond the 
on industry a
al impact of
ge flow). 

se is 
SMP at 1‐2.)
eate the 
ter needs. 

nally designe
ties).  Althou
work to 
designed, it i
for the final 
a draft mod
uired by No

to be able to
pear to 

viding 
ent 
 hear 
ue as 

d it 
but 

g at 
other 
dered 
ion 

lan 
for 
), but 

and 
f 

)  If 

ed for 
ugh 

s 

del 
rth 

o 

34



Centralina
January 1
Page 4 

a
o
to
F
a
u
b
2
h
ch
w
d
F
b
as
m

 T
le
sc

 T
d
th
n

 T
m

 T
co

 T
 

a Council of G
2, 2015 

ccurately de
rganization 
o independe
urthermore,
ppear to be 
sing historic
e higher in t
5% of the tim
istorical lake
hanges its o
were at this l
uring signific
ERC approve
elow full po
ssumes that
makes it appe

he Water M
evels predict
cenario.   

he model’s p
ependent on
he mix of ele
eed to be in

here are ma
model includ

o How d
from t
increa
consu

o Does t
which
more 

o Does t
predic

o What 
comp

he model sh
omment pro

he potential

Governments 

escribe realit
outside of th
ently replicat
, the modeli
consistent w
cal data  and
the future sh
me even if n
e levels.  Unl
perations, it
evel 25% of 
cant rain eve
ed target ele
nd and wint
t there is sign
ear that that

anagement 
ted by the m

projections a
n assumptio
ectrical gene
dependently

any other qu
ing:  
does the mo
thermoelect
ased evapora
umption. 
the model a
h tends to inc
water lost d
the model a
cted by clima
does the mo
ared to the 

hould be inde
ocess before

l disproporti

ty using histo
he Water M
te the mode
ng results fo
with actual o
 CHEOPS to 
hows that La
nothing is do
less FERC ch
t seems extre
the time, th
ents.  Becau
evations (no
ter target ele
nificantly mo
t water supp

Group shou
model for eac

about the ad
ons about po
eration techn
y questioned

estions abo

odel address 
tric power p
ation, and th

dequately a
crease the fl
due to inabil
dequately a
ate models?
odel predict
2007 drough

ependently 
e it is finalize

ionate impac

 
orical data. 
anagement 
eling results 
or the base s
observed con
support the
ake Norman 
one (base sce
hanges targe
emely unlike
here would e
se the mode
rmal summe
evations dro
ore water st
plies will last

uld be asked 
ch of the ma

dequacy of t
opulation gro
nologies loca
d and verifie

ut the mode

the induced
lants? Wate
his needs to 

ddress the i
lashiness of 
ity to store t
ddress the r
? 
t will happen
ht? 

verified and
ed. 

ct on Lake Ja

To the best 
Group and i
used as a ba
scenario usin
nditions.  Fo
e contention
will be at 10
enario), whic
et elevations
ely that this 
extensive flo
el shows lak
er target ele
op to six feet
tored in the 
t longer). 

to produce 
ajor lakes in t

the water su
owth, urban
ated on the 
ed.  

el and the da

d evaporatio
er used for co
be included

mpacts of in
flows and re
the water du
rainfall and t

n to lake leve

d complete t

ames is still 

of our know
its consultan
asis for the p
ng historical 
or example, a
 that lake le
00% full pon
ch is very dif
s and Duke s
is accurate. 

ooding and e
e levels as b
evations are 
t below full p
system than

charts show
the Basin un

upply appear
ization, clim
river.  These

ata produced

on from hot 
ooling is prim
d in the powe

ncreased urb
esult less ba
uring high flo
temperature

els in future 

he public no

a major con

wledge, no 
nts has been
proposed WS
 data do not
a chart prod
vels will act
nd approxima
fferent than
ignificantly 
 If lake leve

erosion prob
being higher 
at least two
pond) the m
n is likely, wh

wing the lake
nder each 

r to be extre
mate change,
e assumptio

d by the CHE

water discha
med for 
er category’

banizations, 
se inflow an
ow periods?
e variations 

droughts 

otice and 

cern. 

n able 
SMP.   
t 
duced 
ually 
ately 
 

ls 
lems 
than 
 feet 
odel 
hich 

e 

emely 
, and 
ns 

EOPS 

arges 

s 

nd 
? 

35



Centralina
January 1
Page 5 

Inter‐Bas
 

 IB
th
W
C
w
W

 In
w
h
b
W
a

 C
m
M
m
th
n
a
cu

 
Water Co
 

 C
si
C
ri
to
co
w

 R
re
in
w
to
u
sp
b
A
a

a Council of G
2, 2015 

sin Transfers

BTs have a d
he water use
Wateree Rive
atawba‐Wat

water availab
Wateree basi

n developing
what is leavin
elp in determ
e needed. F

Water Supply
re complete

atawba Rive
multi‐basin a
Mecklenburg
meet future w
hat can deve
ortheast, ea
ddress wate
urrently hav

onsumption 

urrently, the
ingle largest
oncerned Sc
vers in the U
o assure a su
onsumer of 
water consum

esearch is b
educe the ne
ndicated tha
water‐saving 
o implement
se water fro
pend money
roader pers

At the very le
round and a

Governments 

s (IBTs) 

isproportion
ed in an IBT 
er basin cann
teree River b
ble in adjoini
in to have a 

g a strategy t
ng our basin 
mining and m
irst and fore
y consumptio
e loss. 

erkeeper sup
pproach to m
g County and
water dema
elop water s
ast, and sout
er supplies fo
ve substantia

to Produce E

ermo‐electri
 net consum
cientists iden
United State
ustainable su
water, but t
mption at th

eing done in
et consumpt
t, from its p
technologie
ting these te
om the River
y to reduce w
pective in de
east, this nee
adding comb

nate impact 
is lost to dow
not continue
basin and su
ing basins, o
net inflow o

to keep wate
and options
making a cas
emost, this c
on internal t

pports the as
meeting the
d eastern Un
nds in the re
upplies in th
theast sides
or the growt
al IBTs out of

Electricity 

ic power pla
mer of water 
ntified the C
es from wate
upply of wat
the proposed
ermo‐electr

n various pla
tion of wate
erspective, i
es and theref
echnologies.
r, from Duke
water consu
etermining w
eds to be a g
bined cycle p

 

on the wate
wnstream u
e to be tappe
urrounding b
one might ex
of water from

er in our bas
s for reducin
se for what c
omponent n
to the basin,

spects of the
 growth nee
nion County.
egion may be
he Yadkin ba
of Charlotte
th in the Stat
f the Catawb

nts owned b
in the Cataw

Catawba‐Wa
er use by pow
ter address a
d WSMP doe
ric power pla

aces on cooli
r by thermo
it is not cost
fore the WS
  However, a
’s perspectiv
mption.  Thu
what water‐
goal for whic
power plants

er supply in t
sers in the B
ed to meet t
basins. If any
xpect for res
m neighborin

sin, there m
ng the net IB
changes to i
needs to be 
, which is mo

e WSMP tha
eds of Cabar
  Specifically
e to establis
asin to meet 
e.  Similar ide
tesville and 
ba‐Wateree 

by Duke Ene
wba‐Watere
teree River 
wer plants.  
and reduce w
es not recom
ants. 

ing technolo
o‐electric pow
t effective fo
SMP does no
as long as th
ve, it will ne
us, it is impo
saving techn
ch Duke Ene
s are not the

the Basin be
Basin.  The C
the needs of
ything, given
idents of the
ng basins.  

ust be more
BTs out of th
infrastructur
separated fr
ore margina

at encourage
rrus County, 
y, part of the
sh a regional
projected g
eas should b
Mooresville
River basin.

ergy and SCE
ee basin.  Th
as one of th
It makes sen
water use by
mmend signi

ogies for pow
wer plants. D
or it to imple
ot give seriou
here is no co
ever be cost‐
ortant that t
nologies are 
rgy strives. M
e complete, 

ecause 100%
Catawba‐
f both the 
n the amoun
e Catawba‐

e of an analy
e basin. This
re or sales m
rom Public 
al loss, while

e a regional, 
eastern 
e solution to
l water utilit
rowth on th
be explored t
 areas, whic
. 

E&G, are the
e Union of 
e most stres
nse that any
y the largest
ificantly red

wer plants th
Duke Energy
ement these 
us considera
ost to Duke t
‐effective to 
he WSMP ta
 cost‐effecti
Moving wate
reliable answ

% of 

t of 

ysis of 
s will 
might 

 IBTs 

o 
ty 
e 
to 
ch 

 

ssed 
y plan 
t 
ucing 

hat 
y has 
 
ation 
o 

ake a 
ve.  
er 
wer.  

36



Centralina
January 1
Page 6 

 T
b
co
se
ti
e
m
a

 A
re
p

 
Flooding 
 

 E
co

 If
th
m

 F
H
p
in
S
p
ra

 
Economic
 

 T
p
d

 T
re
d
N
in
a
go

 So
si
tw

a Council of G
2, 2015 

he WSMP as
e combined
onsume rela
eems unreal
me frame of
nergy.  If gas
meet future e
ll of the nee

As suggested
enewable en
roduce wast

Impacts 

specially wit
onsider – flo

f the CHEOPS
he time, floo
managing wa

urthermore,
Holding lakes
articularly c
ncreased flas
hoals and La
lan needs ad
ates reduced

c, environme

he economi
ublic scrutin
emand, it is 

he economi
elated.  A sig
ependent on

Norman drop
ntakes, for a 
round the la
overnments

ome major i
ignificant ad
wo paper mi

Governments 

ssumes that 
cycle facilit

atively little w
listic to assu
f the plan an
s prices incre
energy dema
ds of the reg

by Charlott
nergy source
te) to meet f

th increases 
ooding is inc

S model is co
oding is a pro
ater in the ba

, the propos
s six inches h
ombined wi
shiness of flo
ake Wateree
dditional con
d, raising tar

ental and ec

c and ecolog
ny.  To evalu
necessary t

c health of t
gnificant per
n the health
pped to leve
sustained p

ake, as wells 
s.  These cost

ndustrial fac
ditional cost
ills, several c

most of the
ies that dep
water comp
me that nat
nd model sh
ease and co
and, it is unc
gion. 

e City Counc
es (e.g., wind
future energ

in impervio
reasingly be

orrect in pre
oblem that n
asin.   

ed plan sugg
higher will ex
th the impac
ow from clim
e in particula
nsideration o
rget lake leve

cological imp

gical costs of
ate the cost
o understan

the region an
rcentage of t
 of the River
ls that were 
period, it wo
as local bus
ts need to b

cilities would
ts, if the flow
chemical pla

 
e future pow
end upon na
are to new c
ural gas pric
ould addres
al or nuclear
clear whethe

cilmember Jo
d and solar, 
gy demands.

us surface a
coming a co

edicting that
needs to be 

gests increas
xacerbate flo
ct of increas
mate change
ar already ha
of flooding i
els higher m

pacts of the P

f the propos
‐effectivene
nd the econo

nd the ecolo
the tax base
r and its lake
below 2007
uld have a s
sinesses and 
e identified,

d also have t
w of the Rive
ants and man

wer plants co
atural gas fo
coal or nucle
ces will rema
ss the impact
r facilities be
er the River 

ohn Autry, t
which do no
. 

rea – which 
oncern for th

t lake levels w
mitigated as

sing target l
ooding prob
sed run‐off f
e. Mountain 
ave significan
mpacts, and

might not be 

Plan 

sed WSMP n
ess of possib
omic impacts

ogical health
 in many cou
es.  For exam
7 levels, but 
ubstantial im
 the tax base
, quantified 

to curtail the
er was reduc
ny textile fac

onstructed o
or fuel.  Thes
ear power p
ain low durin
t of using ot
ecome more
would still b

the Plan sho
ot need wate

CHEOPS als
he basin.  

will be at fu
s part of the

ake levels by
blems in the 
rom urbaniz
Island Lake,
nt flooding p
d were other
necessary. 

need greater
le solutions 
s of water sh

h of the River
unties and t
mple, if lake 
above the lo
mpact on pro
e for the sur
and conside

eir operatio
ced substant
cilities in the

on the River w
se facilities 
lants, but it 
ng the entire
ther sources
e economica
be able to m

uld include 
er nor does 

so needs to 

ll pond 25% 
e plan for 

y six inches. 
Basin, 
zation and 
, Lake Looko
problems. Th
r consumpti

r study and 
to reduce w
hortages.   

r are closely
owns is 
levels on La
owered wate
operty value
rrounding 
ered. 

ns or incur 
tially.  There
e Catawba‐

will 

e 
 of 
al to 
eet 

it 

of 

 

out 
he 
on 

water 

 

ke 
er 
es 

e are 

37



Centralina
January 1
Page 7 

W
th
h

 A
d
re
sh

 U
1
sy
R
a
im

 
Process 
 

 A
“g
b

 It
p
si
U
n
e

 C
G
C
St
re
W

 
 

  
We recom
 

 C
th

 E
at

a Council of G
2, 2015 

Wateree Rive
heir waste st
ave significa

As flow decre
ecreases, w
ecreation, pu
hould be exp

Under the pro
5% of the av
ystem could
ecent scient
re likely to c
mpacts of de

As noted abo
getting the c
efore appro

t is inherent 
opulation gr
ignificantly a
Unfortunately
ew water su
ncouraged t

atawba Rive
Governments
atawba‐Wat
takeholder A
esource that
WMP as it ev

mmend that

ommend th
his critical iss

ndorse and 
t local water

Governments 

er Basin that
tream.  Curt
ant ripple eff

eases, in gen
hich hurts w
ublic water s
plicitly addre

oposed plan
verage flow 
 be even low
tific literatur
cause serious
ecreased flow

ove, approvin
cart before t
ving the pla

in this type 
rowth, clima
affect the ad
y, many of t
upplies requi
to review an

erkeeper wa
s to be an in
ter River, bu
Advisory Tea
t they create
olves. 

t members o

e Water Ma
sue for the f

implement t
r utilities; 

t use the Riv
ailment of o
fects throug

neral, the ab
water quality
supplies and
essed in the 

n, water flow
of the river.
wer, particul
re suggests t
s ecological 
ws. 

ng a final pla
the horse.”  T
n. 

of planning 
ate change, a
dequacy of th
he solutions
ire substant
d update th

s created by
dependent s
ut Catawba R
am.  We enc
ed and to so

Recom

of the Centra

nagement G
future of the

the recomm

 
er for proce
operations at
h the local e

ility of the R
y and negativ
d industrial w
plan. 

w below the 
 It appears t
arly in the im
that sustaine
damage.  Th

an before th
The CCOG s

that conditi
and many ot
he plan if th
s required to
ial lead time
e plan at lea

y local gover
source of inf
Riverkeeper 
ourage loca
licit input fro

mmendation

alina Counci

Group (WMG
e region; 

mendations re

ss water, co
t these majo
economies.

River to natu
vely impacts
water suppli

Wateree Da
that flows o
mmediate vi
ed flows belo
he plan shou

e model on 
hould wait u

ons can cha
ther factors 
ey vary from
o reduce wat
es.  We reco
ast every five

rnments and
formation o
was not incl
l governmen
om Catawba

ns 

l of Governm

G) for their p

elating to in

ooling water,
or industrial 

urally deal w
s the use of t
es.  These im

am could dro
on other sect
icinity of pow
ow 80% of t
uld consider 

which the p
until the mo

nge quickly.
have the po
m the assum
ter consump
mmend that
e years. 

d the Central
n issues rela
luded as par
nts and CCO
a Riverkeepe

ments: 

proactive wo

creasing wa

, and to dilut
facilities wo

ith pollution
the River for
mpacts and c

op to as low 
tions of the 
wer plants.  
he average f
the ecologic

lan is based
del is finalize

  Technolog
otential to 
ptions. 
ption or dev
t the WMG b

lina Council 
ating to the 
rt of the 
G to utilize t
er about the

ork in addres

ater conserva

te 
ould 

n 
r 
costs 

as 
River 

flow 
cal 

 is 
ed 

ies, 

elop 
be 

of 

the 
e 

ssing 

ation 

38



Centralina
January 1
Page 8 

 E
fr

 E
Lo

 E
th

 E
p
W

 E
d

 E
o
b

 E
sa
p

 E
u
ti
in

 E

 E

 D
o
b
 
 

 
The prop
will keep
remain th
preserve
solution.
 
It makes 
accurate
adequacy
supply de

a Council of G
2, 2015 

ndorse and 
rom the Yad

ndorse and 
ow‐Inflow P

ndorse and 
he importan

ncourage th
lan on the e

Wateree dam

ncourage th
ecreased flo

ncourage th
utflow of wa
asins to mee

ncourage th
aving techno
erspective o

ncourage th
rbanization 
mes) and cli
ncreased we

ncourage th

ncourage th

Don’t base a 
f scientific, g
een formally

posed WSMP
p flowing thr
he same or t
d.  It is not o
   

no sense to
ly modeling 
y of the mod
ecisions.  In 

Governments 

implement t
kin basin to 

implement t
rotocol; 

implement t
ce of water 

e WMG to e
ntire Cataw

m;   

e WMG to g
ows on the re

e WMG to g
ater (IBTs) fr
et growth ne

e WMG to g
ologies at po
of the entire 

e WMG to i
(more storm
imate chang
eather variab

e WMG to s

e WMG to r

final plan on
government
y approved a

P is a classic 
ough the tap
that other e
obvious that

 have a final
future wate
del that need
addition, th

the recomm
meet dema

the recomm

the recomm
conservatio

expand the s
ba‐Wateree

give greater 
egion; 

give greater 
rom current 
eeds in the r

give greater 
ower plants o
region and 

ncorporate a
mwater run‐o
ge (increased
bility) into th

study the im

review and u

n a draft mo
 and public r
as valid for w

C

engineering
ps until 2100
conomic, re
t the propose

l plan is base
er use is criti
d to be addr
e projection

 
mendations re
nd in the Ya

mendations re

mendations re
on; 

scope of the 
e River basin,

attention to

consideratio
levels of IBT
region, parti

consideratio
or the use o
not just the 

all of the pro
off during ra
d temperatu
he modeling;

pact water q

update the W

del ‐‐ wait to
review of th
water supply

onclusion 

g solution.  T
0, but it is no
creation and
ed WSMP is 

ed on a draft
cal.  There a
ressed befor
ns from the m

elating to de
dkin basin;

elating to im

elating to ed

 plan to incl
, including t

o the econom

on to metho
Ts by develo
cularly IBTs 

on to the cos
f renewable
electric unt

ojected impa
ain events an
ures, increas
;  

quality impa

WMP at leas

o endorse th
e model is c
y planning.

The Plan app
ot a plan tha
d ecological 
 the best ec

t model whe
are legitimat
re it become
model are ve

eveloping wa

mproving the

ducating the

ude all of th
he 80 miles 

mic and ecol

ods of reduci
oping water s
in the uppe

st‐effectiven
e energy sou
ility; 

acts of incre
nd less inflow
ed evaporat

acts of the pl

t every five 

he WSMP un
complete an

pears to assu
at will assure
values of th
onomic or e

en the plan i
te questions
es the basis f
ery sensitive

ater supplie

e responsive

e public abou

e impacts of
below the L

logical impac

ing the net 
supplies in o
r basin; 

ness of wate
urces from th

eased 
w at other 
tion and 

lan; 

years; and

ntil the proce
d the model

ure that wate
e that lake le
e river are 
environment

itself states 
 about the 
for major wa
e to the grow

s 

eness 

ut 

f the 
Lake 

cts of 

other 

er 
he 

ess 
l has 

er 
evels 

tal 

that 

ater 
wth 

39



Centralina
January 1
Page 9 

rate in th
track the

More att
Although
droughts
reduction
the prop
 
The plan 
need to b
survive d
their yard
during dr
in the fut
dramatic
boats, an
 
More att
water in 
as drama
There is n
plan that
 
Please do
or me (ri
to discus
 
 

 

a Council of G
2, 2015 

he region an
ese factors to

 
tention need
h plan is desi
s, it is not pro
n in flow wil
osed plan w

calls for inc
be near full p
droughts wit
ds, damage 
roughts as co
ture than in 
c impacts on
nd lost reven

tention need
the basin (D
atically chan
no magic so
t assures ade

o not hesitat
ck@catawba
s this furthe

Governments 

d the impac
o verify that 

ds to be give
igned to me
otective of t
l result in pe

would reduce

reasing the t
pond much 
hout a wate
to docks, an
ompared to 
the past due
property va

nue from lak

ds to be give
Duke Energy)
ging regiona
lution and it
equate wate

te to contact
arivekeeper
er. 

t of urbaniza
the projecti

n to the eco
et FERC min
the ecologica
ermanent da
e flows by 85

target eleva
of the time i
er supply fail
nd increased
doing nothi
e to increase
alues and tax
ke dependen

n to reducin
) and reduci
al growth pa
t is prematur
er supplies u

t Sam Perkin
.org or 704‐4

 
ation and cli
ions remain 

onomic and e
imum flow r
al flow of th
amage to the
5% in order t

tion and the
in order to k
ure.  For ma
 erosion.  Al
ng, the mod
ed demand. 
x base in add
nt businesses

ng the consu
ng IBTs.  We
tterns to red
re to declare
ntil 2100). 

ns (sam@cat
408‐3487) if

Sincerely, 
 
 

Richard C. G
Executive D

Catawba RI
 
Catawba RIVERK
Riverkeeper is a r
use herein. 

imate chang
reasonable.

environmen
requirement
e river (stud
e ecosystem
to keep wate

e model indi
keep enough
any people, t
though the 
del suggests 
 These lowe
dition to the
s. 

umption by t
e also need t
duce stormw
e victory (by

tawbariverk
f you have a

Gaskins, Jr.
Director 

IVERKEEP

KEEPER® is a me
registered tradem

ge.  Thus, it i
. 

ntal impacts 
ts outside of
dies show th
m).  If the mo
er in the res

cates that la
h water in th
this will mea
plan increas
that lake lev
er lake levels
e damage to 

the largest c
to look at ot
water runoff
y declaring th

keeper.org o
ny question

ER® Found

ember of Waterke
mark of Riverkeepe

s important 

of the plan. 
f severe 
at 20% 
odel is correc
servoirs. 

ake levels wi
he system to
an flooding o
ses lake leve
vels will be l
s could have
docks and 

onsumer of 
her options
f from spraw
hat we have

r 704‐651‐5
s or would l

ation, Inc.

eeper Alliance, Inc
er, Inc., and is licen

to 

 

ct, 

ill 
o 
of 
els 
ower 
e 

such 
wl.  
 a 

974) 
ike 

c. 
nsed for 

40



 

 

 

 

Item 14 



 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
 

Board Meeting Date: February11, 
2015 Agenda Item Type: Consent:  Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Sushil Nepal Presentation Time 
(est.): 10 minutes 

Presenter at meeting: Sushil Nepal Phone Number/Ext: (704) 688-6509 
Email: snepal@centralina.org  

Alternate Contact Person: Michelle Nance Phone Number/Ext: (704) 348-2709 
Email: mnance@centralina.org   

Submitting Department: CONNECT 
Our Future 

Department Head 
Approval:  

Description of Agenda Item:   (same wording as on agenda summary) 
 
CONNECT Our Future – Project updates and preview of tools/resources available to member governments. 
 
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 
Over the past three years, the CONNECT Our Future process was guided by a 94 member public-private 
Consortium and leadership of two regional councils (Centralina COG and Catawba Regional COG) to help 
us better prepare for the projected population growth within our region. 
 
The publicly driven process engaged over 8,000  residents throughout the 14 county region of North and 
South Carolina to help create a Regional Growth Framework to guide future growth of our region. The 
preferred growth concept affirmed by the residents and the CONNECT Consortium supports: 

• Major (re)investment in walkable downtowns, mixed-use activity centers, walkable neighborhoods, 
and major transit corridors 

• More housing choices, travel choices, open space/farmland preservation, and job centers 
• More efficient and cost-effective provision of local government services—more “bang for the 

buck” 
 
The CONNECT Our Future Regional Growth Framework includes over 80 different tools and strategies to 
help us realize the vision created by the residents of the 14-county region. These tools will be available as a 
magazine-style report and interactive website for use by our communities. 
 
Staff will present key findings and preview available tools/resources at the meeting. 
 
Action / Recommendation:  
Receive as information. 
 
Time Sensitivity (none or 
explain):  

None 
 

Budget Impact (if 
applicable): 

 
None 

List of Attachments (if 
any): 

CONNECT legislative flyer 
 
CONNECT magazine and website preview 

 

41

mailto:snepal@centralina.org
mailto:mnance@centralina.org


What is CONNECT Our Future?
CONNECT Our Future is a three-year process that has been bringing together communities, 
businesses, non-profits and other public and private organizations across the region to develop  
a regional framework focusing on growing jobs and the economy, improving quality of life and 
controlling cost of government.

Extensive community-based engagement has been used to identify a preferred growth scenario 
and strategies, tools and national best practices to create the regional growth framework. CONNECT 
is supported by a $4.9 million HUD Sustainable Communities Grant and $3 million in local in-kind 
public and private matching resources

Who Participated?
More than 7,500 people regionwide participated in comprehensive community-based engagement, 
work groups, meetings and events to identify what is important to them, and how and where 
growth should occur. The collaborative, in-depth work of local government elected officials, planners 
and staff has ensured the process accurately reflects the existing local plans and futures needs.

Centralina Council of Governments (CCOG), the CONNECT grant 
recipient, has been coordinating, facilitating and staffing the process 
with the Catawba Regional Council of Governments.

CONNECT Our Future Region
To ensure communities and their 
residents across the region participated, 
community-based public engagement 
was held in each of the 14-counties of 
the CONNECT Our Future project region.

The region’s citizens provided input through a broad range of events including open houses, 
community growth workshops, focus groups, scenario planning events, regional partner meet-
ings, RealityCheck2050 and others.

“We can all assume we’ll have 
growth. Moving the regional 
growth concept ahead is an 
opportunity for us to determine  
the quality of that growth.”

Joe Carpenter 
Gaston County Commissioner

“This is a monumental accomplishment for our 
region. We have affirmed the promise made to the 
communities of this region to directly support  
the preference of our citizens and create a 
framework to support the growth aspirations  
of our communities.”

Michael Johnson 
Mayor Pro-Tem Statesville  
and CCOG Board Chair

42



How Does it Help Communities?
Through CONNECT Our Future, Centralina Council of Governments is working collaboratively with local governments  
to create tools and strategies to help communities address the needs their residents identified as priorities now through 
2050. Below are examples of some of the priorities.

CENTRALINA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS • 525 North Tryon Street • 12th Floor • Charlotte, NC 28202 • Phone: 704-372-2416 • Fax: 704-347-4710 • www.centralina.org

Vibrant  
Downtowns
Vibrant downtowns 
and active town centers 
was another priority 
identified by the public.  
Tools and strategies 
have been developed 
to support major 
investments to create 
walkable downtowns 
and neighborhoods, 
in-fill development 
and  redevelopment, 
and accessible housing 
downtown. A CCOG 
service has been 
developed and is in use 
to assist communities 
with downtown 
redevelopment projects.  

More  
Transportation 
Choices
The region’s residents 
said they wanted more 
transportation options 
which could help them 
access jobs and services, 
and would help control 
congestion. There is a 
strong interest in transit 
locally and regionally. 
Activities are underway 
to identify funding 
support for regional 
transportation planning. 

Preserve  
Open Space and 
Farmland
Preserving open 
space and farmland 
was identified as 
a top priority by 
citizens because they 
value recreational 
opportunities and the 
scenic beauty of the 
region. CONNECT’s 
strategies to achieve 
the preferred growth 
scenario developed 
by the region would 
support preservation 
of open spaces and 
farmland, and at the 
same time support the 
important  local food 
industry.

Housing Choices
Residents identified 
the need to develop 
community strategies to 
align new and revitalized 
housing with the specific 
needs of current and 
future residents. A 
regional housing needs 
study underscored the 
need for more senior 
housing, housing near 
jobs, and downtown 
housing. A CCOG service 
to help communities 
develop a community 
housing strategy has 
been developed and 
is in use, and local 
data developed  on 
future population and 
employment growth will 
support it. 

Controlling Cost  
of Government
A strong sentiment 
of residents was the 
need to control the 
cost of government 
that occurs with 
development of open 
space. Cost associated 
with growth includes 
water, sewer, schools, 
parks and transportation 
services.  As less land 
is consumed by future 
growth patterns, local 
governments would 
have smaller footprints 
to provide services which 
results in cost savings. 
Housing located near 
jobs and in downtowns 
saves the cost of physical 
and social infrastructure. 

Craig Kuhner 2009-Sasaki Associates

43



Catch a  
sneak peek!

Scan the QR code or visit 
preview.ConnectOurFuture.org 
to see the in-progress site.

Then, come back starting  
February 1st for the 

complete document.

CONNECT Our Future 
is rolling out a brand 
new website.

The new ConnectOurFuture.org will 
include over 70 tools that elected and 
appointed officials and staff can use 
to support local priorities and move 
our shared regional vision forward.

For more information on CONNECT 
Our Future, contact Sushil Nepal at 
snepal@centralina.org.

Catch a  
sneak peek!

Scan the QR code or visit 
tinyurl.com/connectdoc  
to see the latest draft.

Then, come back starting  
February 1st for the 

complete document.

CONNECT Our Future 
is rolling out a regional 
magazine.

The magazine will feature the regional 
priorities that came out of a 2-year 
engagement process, highlight good 
ideas from around the region, and 
give people a starting point for change.

For more information on CONNECT 
Our Future, contact Sushil Nepal at 
snepal@centralina.org.

44



 

 

 

 

Item 15 



 

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION 
Rebecca Yarbrough 
February 11, 2015 

 
WHEREAS, Rebecca Yarbrough has been a dedicated employee, an invaluable resource and a 
continuing presence at Centralina COG for over 37 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Rebecca Yarbrough has helped to shape the region and services that Centralina COG 
provides; and 
 
WHEREAS, Rebecca Yarbrough has given great voice to pressing public policy issues facing the 
region and has helped Centralina COG in recognizing the most effective ways to achieve better quality 
of life outcomes for our member governments; and  
 
WHEREAS, Rebecca Yarbrough has a history of dedicated public service and has provided insightful 
leadership on several programs, initiatives, boards and committees; and 
 
WHEREAS, Centralina COG takes pride in honoring the service of Rebecca Yarbrough and expresses 
great appreciation for her gifts of time, ability, and commitment to the organization and to the Greater 
Charlotte Region. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that on this eleventh day of February 2015 that Rebecca 
Yarbrough is deemed by the Officers and Board of Delegates of the Centralina Council of Governments, 
the Executive Director, Centralina staff and countless others as a remarkable example of dedication to 
public service and commitment to North Carolina local government. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Michael Johnson, Centralina Board Chairman 
 
 
 
Jim Prosser, Centralina Executive Director 

45


	0 - 2-11-15 Board of Delegates Draft Agenda
	1 - BOD Minutes 10-08-14
	2 - Financial Statement - Cover Sheet
	Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet

	2a - Financial Statement - Statement of Activities
	December 2014

	3 - Bylaws Amendments - Cover Sheet
	Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet

	3a - Bylaws Amendments - Revisions
	Article VII:  EXECUTIVE BOARD

	4 - Nominating Committee Report - Fly Sheet
	5 - Elections - Fly Sheet
	6 - Installation of Officers - Fly Sheet
	7 - Municipal Caucuses - Fly Sheet
	8 - Annual Report - Fly Sheet
	9 - Budget Proposal - Operating Budget - Cover Sheet
	Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet

	9a - Budget Proposal - Operating Proposal
	Operating Budget

	10 - Budget Proposal - Grant Projects 2016 - Cover Sheet
	Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet

	10a - Budget Proposal - Grant Projects Proposal
	Grant Projects Budget

	11 - FY16 Dues Assessment - Cover Sheet
	Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet

	12 - FY16 Occupancy Contract February 2015 - Cover Sheet
	Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet

	13 - CWWSMP - Cover Sheet
	Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet

	13a - CWWSMP - Resolution to Support the CWWMG Master Plan-Rev1-13-15
	13b - CWWSMP - Combined BoD-ExBd-Webinar Comments Sept-Jan 2015 (2)
	Combined BoD-ExBd-Webinar Comments Sept-Jan 2015
	2015-01_Catawba_Riverkeeper_Comments_on_WSMP_to_CCOG

	14 - CONNECT Update - Cover Sheet
	Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet

	14a - CONNECT Update - Legislators' Flyer
	14b - CONNECT Update - Magazine & Website Preview
	15 - Rebecca Yarbrough Resolution



